FAQ --  ECS FY2004 Call for Internal NASA CEE Proposals
Revised October 21, 2003

Please scroll down for latest revisions to this FAQ.

Update: October 9, 2003

1. Topic Question:  Multiple requests for clarification on who may propose.

a. Answer:
The proposal call was revised to clarify this.  

Per Section 1.3, General Information:
“This call is open to all NASA centers and the Jet Propulsion Laboratory.  A center Civil Service or JPL staff member (not contractors) must be the task lead and proposal submitter, although collaborations between centers and other institutions (OGA , Industry, & Academia) are encouraged.”
This internal call is not a NASA Research Announcement (NRA).
2. Topic Question:  “I have quite a few colleagues in academia who would be interested in this (and would have very good ideas to propose). What is the rule about them being a Co-I[nvestigator] with NASA people?
a. Answer:

Referring to Section 1.3, General Information again, collaborations between NASA centers and other institutions are encouraged.   

However, the specific arrangements for funding external parties shall be the responsibility of the principal investigator, within all applicable acquisitions regulations.  ECS will fund selected proposals as internal transfer of funds within the agency.  This solicitation must not be construed as a solicitation that would bind the Government for external funding; all external funding arrangements are the full and sole responsibility of the PI through his/her organization, including setup and management of contracts or grants for external parties proposed in response to this solicitation.
3. Topic Question:  “Is there a web site or someone in your organization that I could get in contact with to answer some questions?
a. Answer:

The ECS website (http://ecs.arc.nasa.gov) will be updated with frequently asked questions and responses.

4. Topic Question:  Multiple questions on the use of the task plan spreadsheet.
a. Answer:

The task plan spreadsheet is the required proposal format for proposals to respond to sections 1.4.1 through 1.4.6 of the solicitation.  The resumes requested in section 1.4.7 of the solicitation shall be provided in a separated file.  Please refer to section 1.4.8 of the solicitation (CEE_Call_Rev2.doc), quoted below.

Section 1.4.8:  “The required information listed in Sections 1.4.1 through 1.4.6 must be submitted electronically, using the MS Excel form (CEE_Task_Plan_Rev2.xls) provided with this RFP.  The resumes requested in Section 1.4.7 shall be provided in a separate single PDF file.  You may include a backup section with additional material (papers, other material and presentations, or website references) up to 40 additional pages in a separate third file in PDF format; however, the proposal shall not depend on the information in the third file to present any required proposal portion.   Deviation from format requirements will result in rejection of proposal. "
The task plan spreadsheet was revised due to some problems entering data.  Revision 2 has been tested and is working properly; the instructions for entering data in the embedded text boxes in the spreadsheet follows.   Please note that Mac computers may have trouble with this feature of Excel; you may have to use a Windows PC to prepare the task plan for your proposal.

Instructions for extended text box data entry:

The framed text boxes can be edited if you click inside the text box, select "Edit" in the menu, then select "Text Box Object" and then "Edit" again; else you can right-click on the text box and then choose "Text Box Object" / "Edit." 
Note: The task plan spreadsheet has been updated per topic 14.
5. Topic Question: What is the TRL level that the call is shooting for (approximately--low,mid, or high?)
a. Answer:

There is no specific TRL target, except for the general range that ECS funds (TRL 2-6).
6. Topic Question:  [Are the requested proposals] like a Step 1 or a Step 2 proposal?
a. Answer:

There is no plan for a 2-step solicitation.

Update: October 14, 2003

7. Topic Question: How long are the proposals supposed to be?
a. Answer: 

There is a limit of 10 printed spreadsheet pages ; all the required proposal items, except the resumes requested in section 1.4.7 of the solicitation, must be included in the task plan spreadsheet provided with the solicitation (CEE_Task_Plan_Rev2.xls).  

NOTE:  This superseded Topic Question #6 from the October 9, 2003 update. We apologize if this causes a problem.  The task plan spreadsheet has been updated per topic 14.
8. Topic Question:  Regarding using CEE_Task_Plan_Rev2.xls as the method to submit the proposal, it appears "Text Box Objects" cannot readily accept figures -- is the intent that the proposal be text-only? If not, please advise how you would like figures included.

a. Answer:

The spreadsheet does not accept figures.  There is currently no workaround.

Note: The task plan spreadsheet has been updated per topic 14.
9. Topic Question: How long are the proposals supposed to be?" states there is no length limit, but indicates content must be included in the spreadsheet.  I interpret this to mean our entries in the Text Box Objects may exceed the viewable size in the spreadsheet (so reviewers may have to scroll down in the Text Box Objects to see the full content). Is this interpretation correct, or are Text Box Objects limited to the viewable size?
a. Answer

There is a change to this prior answer.     Please refer to Topic Question  7 above.

If your response exceeds the size of the text box, please extend the size of the text box manually in your proposal, otherwise you may not be able to determine the correct proposal length.
10.  Topic Question: What is the total anticipated funding for this CEE program for   FY04? Relatedly, how many proposals do you expect to fund (assuming proposals average ~$500K per year?)
a. Answer

Two points to note.  

First, CEE is not a program, but a research area within the Engineering for Complex Systems Program.

The current budget available for CEE-related activities is under evaluation due to full cost fluctuations.   The estimate ranges between $2-3M in FY04.
11.  Topic Question: Multiple questions regarding the phasing plan, and definition of the terms Commitment, Obligation, and Costing in reference to the phasing plan.

a. Answer

Commitment refers to when the funds are “reserved” for use, e.g., when a purchase request or task order is submitted.   When the funds are formally assigned to a contract or an order is placed with a vendor, they are obligated.  Costing refers to when the funds are transferred, as in a payment to a vendor or contractor.

For effective cash management, as the agency receives allocations, it is important to know when funds are required.  A phasing plan identifies the phase (per above definition) of the funding requirements.   

If any questions remain on this matter, it is advisable that you seek guidance from your NASA center or performing line organization for clarification.

12.  Topic Question: Please clarify the meaning of "Phasing Plan" -- does the term "phases" in this context mean each FY = one phase? Or is the development effort for each "incremental deliverable" within an FY considered a phase? If the latter is true, then the above spreadsheet table would appear to be a FY04 month-by-month summary for all phases as they start and end throughout the FY (is this correct?).
a. Answer

Please refer to Topic Question 11 above.

13. Topic Question:  The CEE_Call_Rev2.doc title page and header says "Revision 1 - October 2, 2003" but the file name and text refer to Rev2 - which is the correct revision number (and related date)?
a. Answer

Although the label in the header and references to the revision number and date in file CEE_Call_Rev2.doc file failed to be updated, the information in the document is otherwise correct.  The header, revision number and date have been updated, and the file saved using the same file name, and is uploaded along with this updated FAQ in the web page.  Thank you for bringing this omission to our attention.
Note: This topic question has been superseded by topic 14 below.
Update: October 16, 2003

14.  Information item:  By request the task plan spreadsheet has been updated (CEE_Task_Plan_Rev3.xls) so it will print within the allowed 10 pages.   The revised task plan file is now on the website and available for download.

Update: October 17, 2003

15.  Information item:  Please do not use any task plan spreadsheet other than CEE_Task_Plan_Rev3.xls.  Please refer to topic 14 above.

Update: October 21, 2003

16.  Topic Question: How is the cost proposal to be calculated?  The form you provide within the Excel spreadsheet does not have formulas for calculating procurement pool, service costs, etc.   If you do the calculation after I submit the base numbers, how can I tell whether the final figure will be under the 500K maximum?  Is this intended to be a full cost budget or business as usual?

a. Answer

This is an agency-wide call for proposals.  Given that each center and line organization may have different rates, ECS can not calculate these subtotals for the proposers, thus the proposal form does not have any formulas. Each center or line organization should assist the proposer in determining the calculation of the proposal in full cost.  

It is the responsibility of the proposer to provide a total full cost for the overall proposal.  The task plan spreadsheet lists the minimum granularity of cost details; the “total funding” line by fiscal year should include the total sum of the full costs in the categories above that line, and any other full costs not itemized, to provide a total amount that ECS will fund for work under this proposal, if it is selected.

17. Topic Question: “… is the field labeled “CS Salary” misnamed?   … should it be really include CS Salary plus overhead”?

a. Answer

Each center and line organization may have different rates for the cost of Civil Servants.  The total full cost for Civil Servants is the number required in this line.

18. Topic Question: Concerning the budget in the cost proposal section- Where does the CS overhead go in the spreadsheet?  Currently I have procurement as covering the cost of contractors (salary plus overhead), and the civil servant salary alone, but together they do not add up to the requested total funding.  Is the CS overhead not specifically accounted for?
a. Answer

See Topic Question 17 above.

19. Topic Question: Do I understand from your answer that one can enter into each text box ONLY the number of lines shown on the form? If this is so, what is the number of lines for each of the text boxes that do not have a bottom line, but appear to be open?

a. Answer

Only the data that is visible within the text box will print; thus text in the text boxes is limited to the size of the text box if it is to be considered for evaluation.

The number of lines are now visible inside each of the text boxes in file CEE_Task_Plan_Rev3.xls.   This is not a change to the task plan items or features; the only change is to provide the text box line number limit.

All text boxes are bound (i.e., not open).  If you see an unbounded text box, you are likely viewing it on a Mac, which presents other problems for data entry.  

